
 
CITY OF HERMANTOWN 

UTILITY COMMISSION AGENDA – February 18, 2021 
 
Because attendance at the regular meeting location is not entirely feasible due to the health pandemic, 
Hermantown’s February 18, 2021, UTILITY COMMISSION Meeting will be conducted remotely.  
 
The meeting will utilize the platform “Zoom” – which allows the public to view and/or hear the 
meeting from their phone or computer. Attendance is allowed at City Hall, with social distancing 
guidelines to be followed and masks required. 
 
Topic: Utility Commission Meeting 
Time: Feb 18, 2021 05:30 PM Central Time (US and Canada) 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89755353602 
 
Meeting ID: 897 5535 3602 
One tap mobile 
+13126266799,,89755353602# US (Chicago) 
 
 
A few important tips regarding the Zoom platform: 
 
• If your computer does not support audio, you can still watch the meeting on your computer and call 
in on your phone to hear the meeting 
• It is a challenging situation for all of us, so grace and understanding are appreciated 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89755353602


CITY OF HERMANTOWN 
UTILITY COMMISSION AGENDA 
February 18, 2021 
PAGE 2 

CITY OF HERMANTOWN 
UTILITY COMMISSION AGENDA – February 18, 2021 

CITY ADMINISTRATIVE BUILDING, 5105 MAPLE GROVE ROAD 
5:30 PM – Via Zoom  

1. ROLL CALL

2. MINUTES – Approval or Correction

a. January 21, 2021 regular meeting.

3. PUBLIC DISCUSSION (This is the time for which individuals can address the Commission about 
any item pertaining to utilities.  The time limit is three minutes per person)

4. COMMUNICATIONS (items of information only – any communication requiring 
action is provided under that item on the agenda)

a. FROM: Northland Consulting Engineers 
TO: Hermantown City Council  
RE: Lavaque Jct Water Main – MDH Permit 

5. OLD BUSINESS

6. NEW BUSINESS

a. WLSSD F.O.G. (Fats, Oils & Grease) & I&I Report
b. Cable Tv extension

7. REPORTS

a. Budget to Actual Expenditure Report
b. Public Works Utility Maintenance & Project Update Report
c. Water Loss Report
d. WLSSD Monthly Flow, Rain Fall & Flow
e. New Connections Report
f. Utility Billing Happenings 



CITY OF HERMANTOWN 
UTILITY COMMISSION AGENDA 
February 18, 2021 
PAGE 3 

8. COMMISSION MEMBERS REPORT

a. Jim Samberg –
b. William Berg –
c. Robert McLachlan –
d. Doug Kerfeld –
e. Howard Jacobson
f. Councilor Grant Hauschild -

9. RECESS



CITY OF HERMANTOWN 
UTILITY COMMISSION MEETING SUMMARY 
January 21, 2021 
5:30 PM  
This meeting was conducted via zoom by all participants 

 
 
ROLL CALL Jim Samberg, William Berg, Doug Kerfeld, Rob McLachlan, Howard Jacobson, 

Councilor Grant Hauschild 
 
ABSENT: None  
 
VISITORS Kevin Orme, Director of Finance and Administration: Paul Senst, Director of 

Public Work; Lindsay Townsend, Utility Billing Clerk; Lars Waldner, Cable TV 
Coordinator; John Mulder, City Administrator  

 
MINUTES 
 
Motion by Jim Samberg, seconded Rob McLachlan by to approve the minutes of November 12, 2020 
regular meeting with the correction of spelling Rob McLachlan’s name.  All ayes, motions carried 5-0.  
 
PUBLIC DISCUSSION:  There were no members of the public present. 

 
COMMUNICATIONS (items of information only – any communication requiring action is provided 
under that item on the agenda)  
 
The following communications were read and placed on file:  
 

a. 20-182 
FROM: Mediacom 
TO: City Officials  
RE: Rate Adjustment 

 
b. 20-185 

FROM: Dave Berg Consulting 
TO:  John Mulder, City Administrator  
RE:  Water and Sewer Bill Analysis 
  

c. 20-194 
FROM: Todd Hagen & Kristina Norquist, Ehlers 
TO:  John Mulder, City Administrator   
RE:  Residential Water Bills & Water Consumption 
 

d.  
FROM: WLSSD  
TO:  Regulatory Authority   
RE:  Discharge Monitoring Report 

 
OLD BUSINESS – none  
 

 



CITY OF HERMANTOWN 
UTILITY COMMISSION MINUTES 
January 21, 2021 
PAGE 2 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
a. Request to waive Late Fees – Beacon Bar  Motion by Jim Samberg, second by Howard 

Jacobson to waive 50% of the late fee if the full amount was paid in full by the next due 
date of February 10th.  All ayes, motion carried 5-0. 

b. Report and Presentation on Cable TV – Lars Waldner presented a report on the Cable TV 
noting that some of the equipment needed repairs.  No action was taken.  

c. Report and Presentation – Annual Review – John Mulder gave a presentation of an 
overview of the Commission and a review of the year for the Utilities, including the results 
of the review of the high utility bills in 2020.  No action was taken.   

d. Late Fees for January bill:  Kevin Orme brought up the issue that since the City was 
changing the billing cycle with a new due date for payment which is earlier in the month, 
He recommended that the late fee be waived for the period between the new due date (Feb 
10) and the previous date which would be closer to Feb 20th.  Motion by Bill Berg, second 
by Jim Samberg to waive the late fees for that time period.  All ayes, motion carried 5-0. 

 
REPORTS  

  
a. Budget to Actual Expenditure Report – Report was attached 
b. Public Works Utility Maintenance Report-  Report was attached 
c.  Update on water billing complaints – Verbal Report as part of the Annual Review 

presentation prepared by John Mulder.  
d. Project and Policy Updates - John Mulder gave a verbal update, saying he was working on 

new way of reporting to keep the Utility Commission informed of the various projects and 
the milestones of those projects.   Jim Samberg requested that the water loss report be 
included in that packet.   

e. Water and Sewer Applications Report - No Report was attached.  Again, John Mulder 
reported that staff was looking at this process on how to report the applications, but it was 
not necessary for the Chair of the Commission to sign off on the applications.  

 
 

COMMISSION MEMBERS REPORT 
 

a. Jim Samberg: Welcome to Councilor Grant Hauschild   
b. William Berg: No Report  
c. Robert McLachlan:  No Report  
d. Doug Kerfeld: No Report 
e.  Howard Jacobson:  No Report  
f. Councilor Grant Hauschild: No Report -but thanked everyone for the welcome and looks 

forward to working with them and meeting them in person sometime in the future.    
 

 
RECESS Motion by Jim Samberg, second by Bill Berg to adjourn.  All ayes, motion carried 5-0.  
The meeting recessed at approximately 7:17.  
 
Minutes prepared by: 
John Mulder, City Administrator 







































Utility Commission Agenda Report  Agenda Item: 6-b 
February 18, 2021   

Working together to serve and build our community. 

TO: Utility Commission Members 
 

 
FROM:  John Mulder, City Administrator  

DATE: January 15, 2021 Meeting Date:  2/18/21 
 

SUBJECT: Mediacom Broadband 
Expansion  

Agenda Item:  6 B 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
Approve Recommendation to the City Council of the use of Cable TV Funds for Mediacom “Field of 
Dreams” Broadband Expansion  

 
BACKGROUND 
 
Mediacom has received a Minnesota Border to Boarder Broadband Development grant from the MN Dept 
of Employment and Economic Development (DEED) for their “Field of Dreams” broadband expansion.  A 
copy of the award letter and project map are attached.   
 
Field of Dreams Grant Project: 

• Expenditures = $1,249,503.00 (DEED = $624,751.00, Mediacom = $585,502.00, Funding 
Partner = $39,250.00) 

• Complete Fiber to the Home (FTTH) build out (15.65 miles of underground, 1.61 miles aerial) 
totaling 17.26 miles. 

• Passing 274 addresses (213 addresses in Hermantown and 61 addresses in Solway Township). 
Including 5 business in Hermantown and a Fire Hall. 

• Services offered- Internet (offering up to 1Gbps downloads speeds) Phone (Unlimited Nation 
Wide Calling) and Video services (Free HD and thousands of titles Free On Demand). 

• Completion date of December 2022 per DEED contract. Mediacom plans on a much earlier 
completion. 
 

Mediacom has requested that the City contribute $39, 250 from the City to complete the project.  As of 
12/31/2019, the Cable TV fund had a fund balance of $381,394. 
 

 
SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 
 
Cable TV Fund 260- 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Grant Award Letter 
Project map 



 
Minnesota Department of Employment and Economic Development 

Office of Broadband Development 
1st National Bank Building, 332 Minnesota Street, Suite 200 Saint Paul, MN 55101 

Phone 651-259-7610 or 1-800-657-3858 
http://mn.gov/deed/programs-services/broadband/ 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

January 28, 2021 
 
 
 
Bill Jensen 
Mediacom Minnesota LLC - Field of Dreams - Hermantown, MN 
1504 2nd Street SE, PO Box 110 
Waseca, MN 56093 
 
 
Dear Mr. Jensen: 
 
I am pleased to inform you that Mediacom’s application for the Minnesota Border to Border Broadband 
Development Grant is approved.   
 
As outlined in your application, Mediacom is expected to invest the following: 

• $1,249,503 in overall eligible expenditures in the Field of Dreams - Hermantown, MN project, including the 
$624,751 in state grant funds contributed and awarded to you by Minnesota’s citizens.  

The grant will have a 2-year term, in which the project is expected to be completed as stated in your application. 
 
A grant contract agreement is being prepared by the Office of Broadband Development staff. They will also provide 
you with information on performance goals, reporting, and the process for requesting grant funds. For additional 
information, please contact Jennifer Frost, Broadband Grants Administrator, at 651-259-7442. 
 
Thank you for advancing border-to-border broadband development in Minnesota. We are excited about your project, 
and look forward to the long-term community and economic development success made possible by this 
infrastructure investment. 
 
My best regards, 
 
 
 
 
Steve Grove 
Commissioner 
 
 
 
 
C: Senator Thomas M. Bakk 

Representative Mary Murphy 
 
 



Mediacom Expansion 2021 Grant 

 



0
2
/
1
0
/
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
I
T
Y
 
O
F
 
H
E
R
M
A
N
T
O
W
N
,
 
M
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
a
g
e
:
 
1
 
o
f
 
5

0
8
:
5
5
:
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
x
p
e
n
d
i
t
u
r
e
 
B
u
d
g
e
t
 
v
s
.
 
A
c
t
u
a
l
 
Q
u
e
r
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
 
I
D
:
 
B
1
0
0
A

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
i
n
g
 
P
e
r
i
o
d
:
 
 
 
 
1
 
/
 
2
1

F
u
n
d
=
2
6
0
,
6
0
1
,
6
0
2
,
6
0
3
,
6
0
5

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
O
r
i
g
i
n
a
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
v
a
i
l
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
%
 
(
 
 
8
)

 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
 
 
O
b
j
e
c
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
M
o
n
t
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y
T
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
A
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
A
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
C
o
m
m
.

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

 
 
 
2
6
0
 
C
a
b
l
e
 
T
V
 
F
u
n
d

 
 
4
5
6
1
0
1
 
C
a
b
l
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
 
F
u
l
l
-
T
i
m
e
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s
 
-
 
R
e
g
u
l
a
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
8
.
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
8
.
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
1
6
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
1
6
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
9
1
6
.
6
3
 
 
 
6
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
1
 
P
E
R
A
 
C
o
n
t
r
i
b
u
t
i
o
n
s
 
-
 
C
o
o
r
d
i
n
a
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
.
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
.
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
2
.
3
5
 
 
 
6
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
8
 
S
o
c
i
a
l
 
S
e
c
u
r
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
.
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
.
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
2
.
5
1
 
 
 
6
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
9
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
r
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
.
6
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
.
6
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
.
3
8
 
 
 
6
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
1
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
I
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
7
.
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
7
.
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
8
.
3
9
 
 
1
1
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
3
 
L
i
f
e
 
I
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
.
4
6
 
 
 
6
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
4
 
D
i
s
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
I
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
.
1
0
 
 
 
6
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
6
 
M
S
R
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
.
0
1
 
 
 
6
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
1
 
W
o
r
k
e
r
s
 
C
o
m
p
e
n
s
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
8
 
L
e
g
a
l
 
F
e
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
 
C
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
e
d
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
8
7
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
8
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
1
 
T
r
a
v
e
l
 
E
x
p
e
n
s
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
.
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
.
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
3
.
6
5
 
*
*
*
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
1
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
L
i
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
I
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
4
 
E
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
 
M
a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
8
1
.
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
8
1
.
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
3
,
5
8
1
.
0
1
 
4
5
8
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
 
T
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
6
0
6
.
8
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
6
0
6
.
8
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
5
9
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
5
9
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
9
8
3
.
1
7
 
 
3
8
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
u
n
d
 
T
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
6
0
6
.
8
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
6
0
6
.
8
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
5
9
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
5
9
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
9
8
3
.
1
7
 
 
3
8
 
%

 
 
 
6
0
1
 
W
a
t
e
r
 
E
n
t
e
r
p
r
i
s
e
 
F
u
n
d

 
 
4
9
4
3
0
0
 
W
a
t
e
r
 
D
i
s
t
r
i
b
u
t
i
o
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
 
F
u
l
l
-
T
i
m
e
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s
 
-
 
R
e
g
u
l
a
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
5
3
0
.
2
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
5
3
0
.
2
9
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
1
,
0
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
1
,
0
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
2
,
5
1
9
.
7
1
 
 
 
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
2
 
F
u
l
l
-
T
i
m
e
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s
 
-
 
O
v
e
r
t
i
m
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
2
.
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
2
.
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
5
3
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
5
3
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
8
8
4
.
1
2
 
 
 
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
1
 
P
E
R
A
 
C
o
n
t
r
i
b
u
t
i
o
n
s
 
-
 
C
o
o
r
d
i
n
a
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
8
.
7
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
8
.
7
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
,
0
1
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
,
0
1
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
3
3
0
.
2
7
 
 
 
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
8
 
S
o
c
i
a
l
 
S
e
c
u
r
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
2
.
8
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
2
.
8
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
7
6
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
7
6
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
2
1
9
.
1
8
 
 
 
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
9
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
r
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
6
.
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
6
.
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
1
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
1
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
3
9
0
.
0
5
 
 
 
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
1
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
I
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
7
3
4
.
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
7
3
4
.
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
,
0
6
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
,
0
6
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
,
3
2
8
.
6
3
 
 
 
9
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
3
 
L
i
f
e
 
I
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
.
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
.
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
0
.
3
4
 
 
 
6
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
4
 
D
i
s
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
I
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
.
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
.
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
6
.
3
5
 
 
 
6
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
6
 
M
S
R
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
.
8
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
.
8
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
.
1
4
 
 
 
8
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
1
 
W
o
r
k
e
r
s
 
C
o
m
p
e
n
s
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
0
0
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
0
0
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
0
0
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
2
 
M
o
t
o
r
 
F
u
e
l
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
7
.
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
7
.
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
7
8
2
.
9
5
 
 
 
7
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
6
 
U
n
i
f
o
r
m
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
7
.
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
7
.
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
2
.
4
5
 
 
1
6
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
1
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
7
.
9
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
7
.
9
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
7
3
2
.
0
9
 
 
 
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
8
 
U
t
i
l
i
t
y
 
S
y
s
t
e
m
 
M
a
i
n
t
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
9
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
9
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
8
0
0
.
0
1
 
 
 
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
4
 
C
o
m
p
u
t
e
r
/
S
o
f
t
w
a
r
e
 
F
e
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
7
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
7
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
7
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
5
 
S
c
h
o
o
l
 
&
 
C
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
.
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
.
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
5
4
.
3
5
 
 
 
1
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
 
C
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
e
d
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
1
 
T
r
a
v
e
l
 
E
x
p
e
n
s
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
1
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
L
i
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
I
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
4
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
4
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
4
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
2
 
W
a
t
e
r
 
P
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
7
1
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
7
1
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
7
1
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
4
 
E
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
 
M
a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
5
 
C
o
m
p
u
t
e
r
 
M
a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
2
,
4
0
0
.
0
0
 
*
*
*
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
6
 
V
e
h
i
c
l
e
 
M
a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
3
 
E
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
 
R
e
n
t
a
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
7
 
U
n
i
f
o
r
m
 
R
e
n
t
a
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%



0
2
/
1
0
/
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
I
T
Y
 
O
F
 
H
E
R
M
A
N
T
O
W
N
,
 
M
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
a
g
e
:
 
2
 
o
f
 
5

0
8
:
5
5
:
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
x
p
e
n
d
i
t
u
r
e
 
B
u
d
g
e
t
 
v
s
.
 
A
c
t
u
a
l
 
Q
u
e
r
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
 
I
D
:
 
B
1
0
0
A

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
i
n
g
 
P
e
r
i
o
d
:
 
 
 
 
1
 
/
 
2
1

F
u
n
d
=
2
6
0
,
6
0
1
,
6
0
2
,
6
0
3
,
6
0
5

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
O
r
i
g
i
n
a
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
v
a
i
l
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
%
 
(
 
 
8
)

 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
 
 
O
b
j
e
c
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
M
o
n
t
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y
T
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
A
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
A
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
C
o
m
m
.

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

 
 
 
6
0
1
 
W
a
t
e
r
 
E
n
t
e
r
p
r
i
s
e
 
F
u
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
1
 
D
u
e
s
 
&
 
S
u
b
s
c
r
i
p
t
i
o
n
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
7
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
7
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
.
0
0
 
 
9
7
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
0
 
B
o
o
s
t
e
r
 
P
u
m
p
 
R
e
p
a
i
r
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
1
 
W
a
t
e
r
 
L
i
n
e
 
R
e
p
a
i
r
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
5
2
.
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
5
2
.
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
8
4
7
.
1
0
 
 
 
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
2
 
H
y
d
r
a
n
t
 
R
e
p
a
i
r
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
0
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
E
q
u
i
p
/
F
u
r
n
i
s
h
i
n
g
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
2
 
L
i
g
h
t
 
E
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
4
 
M
o
t
o
r
 
V
e
h
i
c
l
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
0
 
O
t
h
e
r
 
E
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
2
9
6
.
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
2
9
6
.
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
4
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
4
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
8
,
2
0
3
.
7
8
 
 
 
2
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
 
T
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
,
6
8
4
.
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
,
6
8
4
.
4
8
 
 
 
1
,
6
0
9
,
0
2
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
1
,
6
0
9
,
0
2
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
1
,
5
8
0
,
3
4
3
.
5
2
 
 
 
2
 
%

 
 
4
9
4
4
0
0
 
W
a
t
e
r
 
A
d
m
i
n
i
s
t
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
 
F
u
l
l
-
T
i
m
e
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s
 
-
 
R
e
g
u
l
a
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
7
2
0
.
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
7
2
0
.
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
,
9
2
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
,
9
2
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
7
,
2
0
0
.
8
9
 
 
 
6
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
2
 
F
u
l
l
-
T
i
m
e
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s
 
-
 
O
v
e
r
t
i
m
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
1
 
P
E
R
A
 
C
o
n
t
r
i
b
u
t
i
o
n
s
 
-
 
C
o
o
r
d
i
n
a
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
0
.
7
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
0
.
7
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
1
8
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
1
8
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
8
2
1
.
2
4
 
 
 
6
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
8
 
S
o
c
i
a
l
 
S
e
c
u
r
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
1
.
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
1
.
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
1
1
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
1
1
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
2
8
.
9
0
 
 
 
6
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
9
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
r
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
.
7
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
.
7
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
9
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
9
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
2
9
.
2
6
 
 
 
6
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
1
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
I
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
8
0
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
8
0
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
0
0
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
0
0
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
9
2
1
.
0
1
 
 
1
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
3
 
L
i
f
e
 
I
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
8
.
0
1
 
 
 
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
4
 
D
i
s
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
I
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
.
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
.
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
9
.
8
6
 
 
 
4
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
6
 
M
S
R
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
.
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
.
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
4
.
8
6
 
 
 
6
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
1
 
W
o
r
k
e
r
s
 
C
o
m
p
e
n
s
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
 
P
r
i
n
t
i
n
g
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
1
 
A
u
d
i
t
/
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
2
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
2
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
0
2
7
.
5
0
 
 
1
1
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
5
 
E
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
 
F
e
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
8
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
8
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
5
,
8
0
0
.
0
0
 
*
*
*
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
8
 
L
e
g
a
l
 
F
e
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
4
 
C
o
m
p
u
t
e
r
/
S
o
f
t
w
a
r
e
 
F
e
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
8
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
8
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
5
6
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
 
C
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
e
d
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
.
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
.
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
2
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
2
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
1
9
6
.
7
5
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
1
 
T
e
l
e
p
h
o
n
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
.
9
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
.
9
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
1
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
1
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
7
3
.
0
4
 
 
 
2
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
2
 
I
n
t
e
r
n
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
.
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
.
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
8
.
6
2
 
 
1
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
3
 
G
o
p
h
e
r
 
O
n
e
 
C
a
l
l
 
L
o
c
a
t
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
.
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
.
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
7
5
.
8
7
 
 
 
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
5
 
P
o
s
t
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
6
7
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
6
7
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
6
6
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
1
 
T
r
a
v
e
l
 
E
x
p
e
n
s
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
0
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
7
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
1
 
L
e
g
a
l
 
N
o
t
i
c
e
s
 
P
u
b
l
i
s
h
i
n
g
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
1
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
L
i
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
I
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
0
9
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
0
9
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
0
9
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
1
 
E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
8
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
8
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
8
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
3
 
H
e
a
t
i
n
g
 
G
a
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
3
.
9
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
3
.
9
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
2
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
2
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
8
5
6
.
0
2
 
 
1
1
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
5
 
C
o
m
p
u
t
e
r
 
M
a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
4
4
7
.
3
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
4
4
7
.
3
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
9
6
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
9
6
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
5
1
6
.
6
9
 
 
5
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
0
 
D
e
p
r
e
c
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
E
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
0
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
0
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
0
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
0
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
 
O
u
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
,
8
3
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
,
8
3
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
,
8
3
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
 
T
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
8
6
5
.
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
8
6
5
.
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
9
,
5
0
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
9
,
5
0
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
5
,
6
4
3
.
5
2
 
 
 
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
u
n
d
 
T
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
,
5
4
9
.
9
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
,
5
4
9
.
9
6
 
 
 
2
,
0
6
8
,
5
3
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
2
,
0
6
8
,
5
3
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
2
,
0
1
5
,
9
8
7
.
0
4
 
 
 
3
 
%

 
 
 
6
0
2
 
S
e
w
e
r
 
E
n
t
e
r
p
r
i
s
e
 
F
u
n
d



0
2
/
1
0
/
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
I
T
Y
 
O
F
 
H
E
R
M
A
N
T
O
W
N
,
 
M
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
a
g
e
:
 
3
 
o
f
 
5

0
8
:
5
5
:
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
x
p
e
n
d
i
t
u
r
e
 
B
u
d
g
e
t
 
v
s
.
 
A
c
t
u
a
l
 
Q
u
e
r
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
 
I
D
:
 
B
1
0
0
A

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
i
n
g
 
P
e
r
i
o
d
:
 
 
 
 
1
 
/
 
2
1

F
u
n
d
=
2
6
0
,
6
0
1
,
6
0
2
,
6
0
3
,
6
0
5

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
O
r
i
g
i
n
a
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
v
a
i
l
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
%
 
(
 
 
8
)

 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
 
 
O
b
j
e
c
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
M
o
n
t
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y
T
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
A
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
A
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
C
o
m
m
.

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

 
 
 
6
0
2
 
S
e
w
e
r
 
E
n
t
e
r
p
r
i
s
e
 
F
u
n
d

 
 
4
9
4
5
0
0
 
S
e
w
e
r
 
M
a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
 
F
u
l
l
-
T
i
m
e
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s
 
-
 
R
e
g
u
l
a
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
9
5
3
.
8
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
9
5
3
.
8
3
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
8
,
9
5
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
8
,
9
5
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
2
,
9
9
7
.
1
7
 
 
 
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
2
 
F
u
l
l
-
T
i
m
e
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s
 
-
 
O
v
e
r
t
i
m
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
9
.
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
9
.
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
1
1
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
1
1
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
6
6
8
.
9
9
 
 
 
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
1
 
P
E
R
A
 
C
o
n
t
r
i
b
u
t
i
o
n
s
 
-
 
C
o
o
r
d
i
n
a
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
0
.
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
0
.
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
6
0
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
6
0
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
1
2
4
.
7
9
 
 
 
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
8
 
S
o
c
i
a
l
 
S
e
c
u
r
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
7
.
9
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
7
.
9
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
9
4
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
9
4
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
5
6
2
.
0
8
 
 
 
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
9
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
r
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
8
.
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
8
.
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
8
5
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
8
5
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
6
8
.
6
4
 
 
 
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
1
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
I
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
3
8
.
5
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
3
8
.
5
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
,
9
4
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
,
9
4
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
,
4
0
5
.
4
2
 
 
 
9
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
3
 
L
i
f
e
 
I
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
0
.
0
1
 
 
 
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
4
 
D
i
s
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
I
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
.
4
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
.
4
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
0
.
5
3
 
 
 
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
6
 
M
S
R
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
.
9
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
.
9
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
.
0
7
 
 
 
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
1
 
W
o
r
k
e
r
s
 
C
o
m
p
e
n
s
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
2
3
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
2
3
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
2
3
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
2
 
M
o
t
o
r
 
F
u
e
l
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
5
5
.
3
0
 
 
1
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
6
 
U
n
i
f
o
r
m
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
7
.
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
7
.
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
2
.
4
5
 
 
2
2
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
1
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
1
.
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
1
.
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
1
8
.
3
4
 
 
1
1
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
8
 
U
t
i
l
i
t
y
 
S
y
s
t
e
m
 
M
a
i
n
t
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
9
 
L
i
f
t
 
S
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
M
a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
4
 
C
o
m
p
u
t
e
r
/
S
o
f
t
w
a
r
e
 
F
e
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
7
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
7
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
7
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
5
 
S
c
h
o
o
l
 
&
 
C
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
.
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
.
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
5
4
.
3
5
 
 
 
3
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
 
P
e
r
s
o
n
n
e
l
 
T
e
s
t
i
n
g
,
 
P
h
y
s
i
c
a
l
s
,
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
 
C
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
e
d
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
6
2
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
6
2
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
,
8
7
5
.
0
0
 
 
1
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
1
 
T
r
a
v
e
l
 
E
x
p
e
n
s
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
1
 
L
e
g
a
l
 
N
o
t
i
c
e
s
 
P
u
b
l
i
s
h
i
n
g
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
1
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
L
i
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
I
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
0
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
0
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
0
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
5
 
S
e
w
e
r
 
C
h
a
r
g
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
,
0
2
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
,
0
2
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
4
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
4
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
2
,
9
7
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
7
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
3
 
R
o
a
d
 
M
a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
4
 
E
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
 
M
a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
0
9
.
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
0
9
.
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
0
9
0
.
2
9
 
 
2
6
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
6
 
V
e
h
i
c
l
e
 
M
a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
.
9
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
.
9
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
4
6
.
0
9
 
 
 
2
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
3
 
E
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
 
R
e
n
t
a
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
1
 
D
u
e
s
 
&
 
S
u
b
s
c
r
i
p
t
i
o
n
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
.
0
0
 
 
8
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
0
 
P
e
r
m
i
t
s
 
&
 
L
i
c
e
n
s
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
5
 
S
e
w
e
r
l
i
n
e
 
R
e
p
a
i
r
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
6
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
6
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
4
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
1
7
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
6
 
L
i
f
t
 
S
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
R
e
p
a
i
r
s
 
S
e
w
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
.
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
.
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
9
7
9
.
8
9
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
7
 
I
 
&
 
I
 
M
a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
8
 
S
e
w
e
r
 
C
l
e
a
n
i
n
g
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
9
 
M
i
s
c
e
l
l
a
n
e
o
u
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
0
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
E
q
u
i
p
/
F
u
r
n
i
s
h
i
n
g
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
0
 
O
t
h
e
r
 
E
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
1
7
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
1
7
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
3
,
6
7
5
.
0
0
 
2
4
7
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
0
 
P
u
m
p
i
n
g
 
P
l
a
n
t
 
&
 
L
i
f
t
 
S
t
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
 
T
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
7
,
5
1
2
.
5
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
7
,
5
1
2
.
5
9
 
 
 
 
 
9
7
7
,
8
8
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
9
7
7
,
8
8
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
0
,
3
7
6
.
4
1
 
 
 
7
 
%

 
 
4
9
4
9
0
0
 
S
e
w
e
r
 
A
d
m
i
n
i
s
t
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
 
F
u
l
l
-
T
i
m
e
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s
 
-
 
R
e
g
u
l
a
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
6
7
3
.
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
6
7
3
.
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
,
1
4
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
,
1
4
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
,
4
6
6
.
8
7
 
 
 
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
2
 
F
u
l
l
-
T
i
m
e
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s
 
-
 
O
v
e
r
t
i
m
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
1
 
P
E
R
A
 
C
o
n
t
r
i
b
u
t
i
o
n
s
 
-
 
C
o
o
r
d
i
n
a
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
8
.
9
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
8
.
9
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
4
4
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
4
4
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
1
6
9
.
0
8
 
 
 
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
8
 
S
o
c
i
a
l
 
S
e
c
u
r
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
7
.
4
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
7
.
4
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
0
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
0
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
2
8
6
.
5
6
 
 
 
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
9
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
r
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
.
8
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
.
8
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
5
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
5
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
2
.
1
4
 
 
 
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
1
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
I
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
2
1
.
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
2
1
.
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
0
6
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
0
6
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
8
3
9
.
7
8
 
 
1
2
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
3
 
L
i
f
e
 
I
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
.
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
.
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
3
.
2
9
 
 
 
5
 
%



0
2
/
1
0
/
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
I
T
Y
 
O
F
 
H
E
R
M
A
N
T
O
W
N
,
 
M
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
a
g
e
:
 
4
 
o
f
 
5

0
8
:
5
5
:
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
x
p
e
n
d
i
t
u
r
e
 
B
u
d
g
e
t
 
v
s
.
 
A
c
t
u
a
l
 
Q
u
e
r
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
 
I
D
:
 
B
1
0
0
A

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
i
n
g
 
P
e
r
i
o
d
:
 
 
 
 
1
 
/
 
2
1

F
u
n
d
=
2
6
0
,
6
0
1
,
6
0
2
,
6
0
3
,
6
0
5

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
O
r
i
g
i
n
a
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
v
a
i
l
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
%
 
(
 
 
8
)

 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
 
 
O
b
j
e
c
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
M
o
n
t
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y
T
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
A
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
A
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
C
o
m
m
.

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

 
 
 
6
0
2
 
S
e
w
e
r
 
E
n
t
e
r
p
r
i
s
e
 
F
u
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
4
 
D
i
s
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
I
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
.
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
.
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
0
.
8
7
 
 
 
4
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
6
 
M
S
R
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
.
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
.
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
0
.
5
1
 
 
 
6
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
1
 
W
o
r
k
e
r
s
 
C
o
m
p
e
n
s
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
 
P
r
i
n
t
i
n
g
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
1
 
A
u
d
i
t
/
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
2
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
2
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
0
2
7
.
5
0
 
 
1
1
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
5
 
E
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
 
F
e
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
8
 
L
e
g
a
l
 
F
e
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
4
 
C
o
m
p
u
t
e
r
/
S
o
f
t
w
a
r
e
 
F
e
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
5
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
5
 
S
c
h
o
o
l
 
&
 
C
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
 
C
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
e
d
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
.
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
.
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
6
.
7
5
 
 
 
1
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
1
 
T
e
l
e
p
h
o
n
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
.
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
.
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
6
7
.
8
3
 
 
 
2
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
2
 
I
n
t
e
r
n
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
.
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
.
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
7
.
9
3
 
 
 
9
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
3
 
G
o
p
h
e
r
 
O
n
e
 
C
a
l
l
 
L
o
c
a
t
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
.
4
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
.
4
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
0
.
5
8
 
 
 
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
5
 
P
o
s
t
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
8
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
8
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
7
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
1
 
T
r
a
v
e
l
 
E
x
p
e
n
s
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
.
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
.
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
8
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
8
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
3
4
.
5
1
 
 
 
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
1
 
L
e
g
a
l
 
N
o
t
i
c
e
s
 
P
u
b
l
i
s
h
i
n
g
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
1
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
L
i
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
I
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
7
3
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
7
3
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
7
3
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
1
 
E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
3
 
H
e
a
t
i
n
g
 
G
a
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
4
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
4
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
8
5
.
0
1
 
 
 
9
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
5
 
C
o
m
p
u
t
e
r
 
M
a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
4
4
7
.
3
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
4
4
7
.
3
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
9
6
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
9
6
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
5
1
5
.
6
9
 
 
5
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
0
 
D
e
p
r
e
c
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
E
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
6
,
7
4
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
6
,
7
4
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
6
,
7
4
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
0
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
 
O
u
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
7
,
9
4
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
7
,
9
4
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
7
,
9
4
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
 
T
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
8
0
9
.
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
8
0
9
.
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
7
7
3
,
7
0
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
7
7
3
,
7
0
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
7
,
8
9
7
.
9
0
 
 
 
2
 
%

 
 
4
9
5
0
0
0
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
 
O
u
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
0
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
 
O
u
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
,
1
2
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
,
1
2
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
,
1
2
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
 
T
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
,
1
2
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
,
1
2
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
,
1
2
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
u
n
d
 
T
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
3
,
3
2
1
.
6
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
3
,
3
2
1
.
6
9
 
 
 
1
,
8
5
0
,
7
2
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
1
,
8
5
0
,
7
2
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
1
,
7
6
7
,
3
9
9
.
3
1
 
 
 
5
 
%

 
 
 
6
0
3
 
S
t
o
r
m
 
W
a
t
e
r
 
E
n
t
e
r
p
r
i
s
e
 
F
u
n
d

 
 
4
4
1
1
0
0
 
S
t
o
r
m
 
W
a
t
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
 
F
u
l
l
-
T
i
m
e
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s
 
-
 
R
e
g
u
l
a
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
5
2
.
5
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
5
2
.
5
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
,
5
8
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
,
5
8
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
,
0
3
5
.
4
7
 
 
 
7
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
2
 
F
u
l
l
-
T
i
m
e
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s
 
-
 
O
v
e
r
t
i
m
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
5
.
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
5
.
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
4
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
4
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
8
1
0
.
8
6
 
 
1
1
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
1
 
P
E
R
A
 
C
o
n
t
r
i
b
u
t
i
o
n
s
 
-
 
C
o
o
r
d
i
n
a
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
2
.
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
2
.
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
2
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
2
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
6
0
.
4
9
 
 
 
7
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
8
 
S
o
c
i
a
l
 
S
e
c
u
r
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
4
.
5
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
4
.
5
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
0
6
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
0
6
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
7
8
4
.
4
4
 
 
 
7
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
9
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
r
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
.
5
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
.
5
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
5
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
5
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
8
5
.
4
7
 
 
 
7
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
1
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
I
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
8
2
1
.
2
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
8
2
1
.
2
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
,
1
9
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
,
1
9
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
3
7
5
.
7
2
 
 
2
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
3
 
L
i
f
e
 
I
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
.
9
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
.
9
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
3
.
0
6
 
 
 
8
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
4
 
D
i
s
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
I
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
.
5
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
.
5
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
9
.
4
2
 
 
 
6
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
6
 
M
S
R
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
5
.
2
3
 
 
1
1
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
1
 
W
o
r
k
e
r
s
 
C
o
m
p
e
n
s
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
9
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
9
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
9
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
5
 
E
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
 
F
e
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
8
 
L
e
g
a
l
 
F
e
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
0
 
R
e
c
o
r
d
i
n
g
/
F
i
l
i
n
g
 
F
e
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
4
 
C
o
m
p
u
t
e
r
/
S
o
f
t
w
a
r
e
 
F
e
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
*
*
*
 
%



0
2
/
1
0
/
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
I
T
Y
 
O
F
 
H
E
R
M
A
N
T
O
W
N
,
 
M
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
a
g
e
:
 
5
 
o
f
 
5

0
8
:
5
5
:
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
x
p
e
n
d
i
t
u
r
e
 
B
u
d
g
e
t
 
v
s
.
 
A
c
t
u
a
l
 
Q
u
e
r
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
 
I
D
:
 
B
1
0
0
A

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
i
n
g
 
P
e
r
i
o
d
:
 
 
 
 
1
 
/
 
2
1

F
u
n
d
=
2
6
0
,
6
0
1
,
6
0
2
,
6
0
3
,
6
0
5

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
O
r
i
g
i
n
a
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
v
a
i
l
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
%
 
(
 
 
8
)

 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
 
 
O
b
j
e
c
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
M
o
n
t
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y
T
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
A
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
A
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
C
o
m
m
.

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

 
 
 
6
0
3
 
S
t
o
r
m
 
W
a
t
e
r
 
E
n
t
e
r
p
r
i
s
e
 
F
u
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
 
C
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
e
d
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
5
 
P
o
s
t
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
1
 
T
r
a
v
e
l
 
E
x
p
e
n
s
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
.
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
.
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
4
.
5
1
 
 
1
5
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
3
 
R
o
a
d
 
M
a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
3
 
E
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
 
R
e
n
t
a
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
1
 
D
u
e
s
 
&
 
S
u
b
s
c
r
i
p
t
i
o
n
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
0
 
I
m
p
r
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
s
 
O
t
h
e
r
 
T
h
a
n
 
B
l
d
g
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
0
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
I
m
p
r
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
9
,
9
3
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
9
,
9
3
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
9
,
9
3
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
0
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
 
O
u
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
,
9
4
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
,
9
4
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
,
9
4
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
 
T
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
4
0
9
.
3
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
4
0
9
.
3
3
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
0
,
0
8
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
0
,
0
8
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
9
,
6
7
6
.
6
7
 
 
 
2
 
%

 
 
4
9
5
0
0
0
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
 
O
u
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
0
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
 
O
u
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
1
2
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
1
2
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
1
2
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
 
T
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
1
2
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
1
2
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
1
2
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
u
n
d
 
T
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
4
0
9
.
3
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
4
0
9
.
3
3
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
6
,
2
1
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
6
,
2
1
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
5
,
8
0
1
.
6
7
 
 
 
2
 
%

 
 
 
6
0
5
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
L
i
g
h
t
i
n
g
 
&
 
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
S
i
g
n
a
l
i
z
a
t
i
o
n

 
 
4
3
1
1
6
0
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
L
i
g
h
t
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
7
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
L
i
g
h
t
s
 
&
 
S
i
g
n
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
1
 
E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
 
T
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
u
n
d
 
T
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
0
 
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
r
a
n
d
 
T
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
1
,
8
8
7
.
8
1
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
1
,
8
8
7
.
8
1
 
 
 
4
,
4
5
3
,
0
5
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
4
,
4
5
3
,
0
5
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
4
,
3
0
1
,
1
7
1
.
1
9
 
 
 
3
 
%



   Public Works 
Utility Maintenance Report 

 

Meeting Date: 2/18/2021 

Reporting Period:   From: 1/1/2021 To: 1/31/2020 

 

1. Water Utility 

a. 3 Water main breaks 

i. Lavaque & 53 by wood magic 

ii. 3562 Stebner Road 

iii. 3689 Getchell Rd 

b. Project Update 

i. Morris Thomas Relocate Hydrants 

1. Resolution 2020-101- 

2. In design and then bid stage w/ SLC 

ii. Peyton Acres 

1. Water & Sanitary sewer installed and tested late 2020 

iii. Lavaque Jct.  

1. Designed to loop water from Jct. thru to Lavaque Rd 

2. New hydrants and relocation of 6 hydrants.  

3. Project is out for bid. 

4. Bids due 2/11/21 

2. Sewer 

a. Project Update 

i. Section 24 Trunkline 

1. Resolution 2020-14 

2. Sanitary Trunk line 24 is approximately 100% complete 

3. Haines Rd Lift Station removed and off line 

4. Contractor to be back onsite late February/early March for trail work  

5. Contract to be complete by June 30th, 2021 

3. Stormwater 

a. Project Update 

i. Swan Lake Road Bridge 

1. Resolution 2020-98 & 2020-168 

2. In SLC process for bidding 

4. Looking Ahead 

a. 2021 Water-main extension on Lavaque Jct.  

b. Steaming culverts 

 

 

 



Duluth Hermantown Water
Billed Billed Percent Main Truck Fill/ City Total Total Percent 

(Gallons) (Gallons) Difference Difference Breaks Temp Meter Usage Accounted Unaccounted Unaccounted
Jan 14,008,544  13,130,447    878,097     6.3% 820,000      23,400           20,990  864,390      13,707            1.6%
Feb -                 -                   -              #DIV/0! -              -                   #DIV/0!
Mar -                 -                   -              #DIV/0! -              -                   #DIV/0!
Apr -                 -                   -              #DIV/0! -              -                   #DIV/0!
May -                 -                   -              #DIV/0! -              -                   #DIV/0!
Jun -                 -                   -              #DIV/0! -              -                   #DIV/0!
Jul -                 -                   -              #DIV/0! -              -                   #DIV/0!
Aug -                 -                   -              #DIV/0! -              -                   #DIV/0!
Sep -                 -                   -              #DIV/0! -              -                   #DIV/0!
Oct -                 -                   -              #DIV/0! -              -                   #DIV/0!
Nov -                 -                   -              #DIV/0! -              -                   #DIV/0!
Dec -                 -                   -              #DIV/0! -              -                   #DIV/0!

14,008,544  13,130,447    878,097     6.3% 820,000      23,400           20,990  864,390      13,707            1.6%

City of Hermantown - 2021 Water Loss Report



Cleor Answers for CIeon Woter

Western Lake Superior Sanitary District
2626 Courtland Street
Duluth, 14N 55806-1894
(214) 722-3336

Account No 4420

Invoice Date o1/3r12a27

CITY OF HERI4ANTOWN

5105 IYAPLE GROVE ROAD

HERIqANTOWN I4N 55811

otl3112021

o!3112D21

02/1512021

02/tsl2021
WASTEWATER CHARGES

2020 AD]USTMENT

42,613.00

-1,587.00013121HER2

13121HER 1

Desc Quantity unit Rate

Current 1 30 Days 31-60 Days Over 60 Days

41,026.00 0.00 0.00 41,O26.OO

When you provide a check as payment, you authorize us either to Lrse information from your check to make a one-time electronic
fund transfer from your account or to process the payment as a check transaction. When we use information from your check to
make an electronic fund transfer, funds may be withdrawn from your account as soon as the same day we receive your paymentl
and you will not receive your check back from your financial institution. For inquiries please call WLSSD at 218-722-3336,

IIJLSSD

Invoice Trans Date Due Date PO

0.00

Page I ol 1



2O2O FLOW AND LOADINGS

SUMMARY ONLY City of Hermantown
BOD aiocnemic€l Oxygen Demand

SS Suspended Soljds

FLO$, Million Grrlons per ory

fOTAL AVG PEAR HR fOTAL AVG TOTAL AVG

MONfH FLOW FLOW RAIE BOD BOD ss ss
MG MGD MGD LBS LBS/DAY LAS LBS/DAY

19.3705 I 090 284
Y 17 .3247 0.5974 0.9683 1 024 29 527

24.g',t01 0.8036 38
27 .6201 0.9206 2.0662
20.4012 0.6581 1.1276
16.4788 27 492 916
17.8419 30 195 605
17 .2338 0.5559 0.8942 947 34,109 1 100
15.3410 93'l

OCIOBER
NOVEMBER

DECEMBER

16.3921 967 31 021
't7 .7258
16.1404 27 197

TOTAL or AVG 226.7804 0.6196 Allocation 37',| 1 016 386 938 I 057

2O2O BUDGET 0.6500 3.5300 I 150 1 100

Questions regarding Billing
ln this summary form
should be directed to:
Cathy Remington
Director of Finance
Westem Lake Superior Sanitary Diskict
2626 Courtland Street
Duluth, MN 55806
Phone: (218) 7404788
Fax: (218) 727-7471
Email:Cathy.Remington@wlssd.com

Data Verified by:
Julie Macor, Director of Environmental ServicsE - (218) 740.1814

Grant Brown, Director of lnformation Seryices .12181710 - 4777
Western Lake Superior Sanitary District

2626 Courtland Street
Duluth, MN 55806

Fax: (2'18) 727-7471
Email: julie.macor@wlssd.com
Email I nt.brown@wlssd.com

lnitialed By
lnitialed By

| 0.6249 I 1.r 440 | 33,772

37.408 I t.zqt I oa,oga I t,zto

I i.042
f 1.040

I 1,2u
29,079

oiro6--f-1 6303 
_l

29,322 I szt
l----e?i----] t rxel

1,001

-----ro7-l 2? ,920
29,366

0.s493 I 0.8523--.._.----.+0.5756 | 0.9898



2O2O FLOW ANO LOADINGS aOD Biochemiel Orygen Demand

SUMMARY ONLY SS Susp€nded Solids

FLOUI Mllion G8llons per Day

TOTAL AVG PEAK HR rOTAL AVG TOTAL AVG

MONTH FLOW FLOW FLOW RAIE BOD BOD ss ss
MG MGO MED Ias LBS/DAY LAS LBS/DAY

11.2779 0.3638 0.5812 20,274 654 '18,786 606
FEBRUARY 10.5004 0.3621 0.5954 '17,696 632 18,144 648

0.4583 1.0166 687 20,398
1 5.1 751 0.5058 1.0028

,,AY
JUNE

JULY
AUGUST

SEPTEMBER

OCTOBER

NOVEMBER

DECEMBER

12.1127 0.3907 0.6791 17205 555 16058 518
10.1589 0.3386 0.5590
11 .2805 0.3639 192s1 621 22661 731
10.E909 18786 606 23529 759
9.8792 0.3293 0.5351 18090 603
10.3950 0.5505 '19964

10.7619 0.3587 0.8676 18360 209'10
9.8715 0.3184 0.5949 16740 540 '19933 643

TOTAL or AVG 136.5101 0.3730 221,263 605 236 7 646

Questions regarding Billing
ln this summary form
should be directed to:
Cathy Remington
Director of Finance
Western Lake Superior Sanitary Distriol
2626 Courtland Street
Duluth. [4N 55806
Phone: (218) 740-4788
Fax: (218) 727-7471
Email:Cathy.Remington@wlssd.com

Data Verified by:
Julie Macor, Diroctor of Environmental S€rvices . (2't8) 7404814
Grant Brown, Diroctor of lnformation Servicel - (2181740 - 4777

Western Lake Superior Sanitary District
2626 Courtland Street

Duluth, MN 55806
Fax: (218) 727-7471

Email: julie.macor@wlssd.com
Email: g rant.brown@wlssd.com

lnitialed
lnitialed

Hermantown
(l' ain,ts lio.lo ltlete'-lrrg Sralir)ti)

14.2061

t 0i353

21,297
16,650 | sss | 17,340

658
578

169s0 I 565 reo -t-lE-
fi-i--o6gso 

__l

697

I o3s13 fo.sa68 I

t- 64,i--"1
| 6i2

18810----f---627
21oi1 | 678



2O2O FLOW ANO LOADINGS

SUi'MARY ONLY Bayview lnterceptor
BOD Biochemic€l Orygen Oomand

SS Suspend6d Solids

FLOW Mlllion Gallons per Day(Cilv of Hermantown

TOIAL avc PEAK HR TOTAL AVG TOTAL

MONTH FLOW FLOW FLOW RATE BOD

MC MGD MGD ras LAS LBS/DAY

8.0926 0.2611 0.6296 498 436 '13 498 436
FEBRUARY 6.8243 0.2353 0.4338 11 383 392

10.7040 0.3453 576 17 854 576
12.4450 o 4148 '1 .0892 692 20 758 692
8.2885 0.603s 13 825 446
6.3199 o.2107 0.3366 10 542 351

Y 6.5614 0.2117 0.448'l 10 944 353 10 944 353
6.3429 0.2046 0.4078 10 580 10 580 341

SEPrEMBER
OCTOBER

NOVEMBER

OECEITBER

5.461 I 0.1821 304
5.997'1 0.1935 10 003 32.l
6.9639 0.2321
6.2689 0.2022 1 .1302 '10 57 10 457

TOTAL or AVG 90.2703 0.2466 150 1 411 150 571 411

Questions regarding Billing
ln this summary form
should be directed to:

Cathy Romington
Director of Finance
Western Lake Superior Sanitary District
2626 Courtland Street
Duluth, MN 55806
Phone: (218) 740-4788
Fax: (218\ 727-7471
Email:Cathy.Remington@wlssd.com

Data Verified by:
Jul16 Macor, Dir€ctor of Environmental Services - (218) 7404814
Grant Brown, Director of lnformation SeNices - (2181710 - 4777

Western Lake Superior Sanitary District
2626 Courtland Street

Duluth, MN 55806
Fax:. (218) 727-7471

Email: julie.macor@wlssd.com
E

lnitialed By:
plflrant. brown@wlssd.com

lnitialed

AVG

BOD ss ss

0.51 11 | 11,616 | 387 | 11,616 1 387

t 11383 T 3e2

t 1oq?o

| 341

----n.26?4----,

9,1 1o | 304

337

0.3061 | 9,110

I i7,Bs4
| 2o]sg
t r332s
I 1qs42

I 446
I gst



Working together to serve and build our community.

Monthly Rain Fall & Flow
Haines Road Station



Working together to serve and build our community.

Monthly Rain Fall & Flow
Bayview



Working together to serve and build our community.

Monthly Rain Fall & Flow
Combined



Application Signed Date Address Sewer Water Home Owner New or Existing Home
1/6/2021 3691 Patriot Lane x x Jay Zierden New

1/28/2021 4995 W Arrowhead Rd x x Les Adolphson New

Connection Applications 



 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

TO: Utility Commission Members 
 

 
FROM:  Lindsay Townsend- Utility 

Billing Clerk   
DATE: February 10, 2021 Meeting Date: 2/18/2021 

 
SUBJECT: Utility Billing Happenings  

 
Agenda Item:  7 g  

    
 

REQUESTED ACTION 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
 Beacon Bar paid their account in full by 2/10/21 and half of late fees were waived 

($105.65), per January Utility Commission decision.   
 

 There are no more payment processing fees for debit/credit card payments made through 
the new portal  

 
 Currently have 519 accounts on the new portal, xxx on paperless billing, xxx on automatic 

payment.  We have received positive feedback on the new portal from our residents.  
 
 Late fees for February will not be applied until 2/21/21 to show grace during our due date 

transition month.  
 

 Past due notices were sent out to 28 customers that are 120+ days past due. 
 
 Ongoing Projects:  Update Ordinances, Policies and Procedures – review and make 

improvements 
 
 

 
SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 
 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
 


	1 Agenda 2021-02-18 Agenda
	2 a 2021-01-21 minutes
	4 a Lavaque Jct Water Main - MDH Permit
	6 a WLSSD FOG & I & I report
	6 b 1 2021-02-18 Mediacom Field of Dreams
	6 b 2 Mediacom Field of Dreams 2020 B2B Award Letter
	6 b 3 Mediacom Expansion 2021 Grant
	7 a Budget to Actual Expenditure Report AP1
	7 b January 2021 Utility Maintenance Report
	7 c Water Loss Report 2021
	UC Water Loss

	7 d 1 WLSSD Flow Report 2020-12
	7 d 2 WLSSD Flow & Rainfall 2021-01
	7 f New Connection Report
	UC Hook Ups

	7 g 2021-02-18 Utility Billing Happenings

